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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,

The Members of,
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Comtrade
Commodities Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as
at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations
given to me, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss
including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. My
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of my report.
I am independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

| draw attention to Note No. 1.2 of the financial statements, which describes that the
entity has ceased its operation and does not have any business activity planned for

future. Accordingly the Financial Statements for the year pigs prepared on a
non-going concern basis. AO?"“‘*“‘\I”O
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My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

_The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not
include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, my responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, |
am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

n preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. )

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exj
&
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Migstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, | exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, | am also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conciude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, | give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.




2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, 1 report that:

(a) | have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit;

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of

Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate Report in
“Annexure A” to this report;

(g) According to the information and explanation given to me and based on my
examination of records of the company, the company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year under review;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended in my opinion and to the best of my information and according to
the explanations given to me:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements. — Refer Note 31
to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
iosses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowtedge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to my notice that has caused me to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
{(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the
year which requires any compliance with respect to section 123 of
the Act.

FOR H.C.VORA & ASSOCIATES
[Firm Registration No. 119196W]

Chartered Accountants
Place : Mumbai -
Date : 11 May, 2022 WM@/
ANSHU C VORA -
{Proprietor)

Mem. No. 103203 |
UDIN: 22103203AJFMLP974‘




Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Ind AS
Financial Statements of COMTRADE COMMODITIES SERVICES LIMITED

iit.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets:

(@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including gquantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment. The company is not having
any right-of-use assets and thus not required to maintain any
details thereof.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(o) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property,
Plant and Equipment so to cover all the assets at a reasonable
interval. According to the information and explanations given to me,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{cy The company does not have any immovable property and
accordingly clause 3 (i)(c) of the order in not applicable on the
company.

(dy  The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
during the year and accordingly clause 3(i)(d) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(e) The company does not have any immovable property and
accordingly clause 3 (i)}e) of the order in not applicable on the
company.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting
under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of ¥ 5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the
year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii){(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

In my .opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
me the Company has not made investments in ,provided any guarantee
pr security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties and hence reporting under cltause 3 of the Order is
not applicable to the company.

[#3




iv.  In my opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
me there are no loans investment guarantee and security given in respect
of which provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and
hence not commented upon.

v.  According to information and explanations given to me, the Company has
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vi. ~ The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.  In respect of statutory dues:

() {(a) According to the information given to us, the Company is generally regular
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues and
Company had no arrears of such outstanding statutory dues as at March
31, 2022 for a period more than six months from the date they became
payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to me, the company
has no disputed outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2022 other than
those stafted below:-

Period to which

Nature of Amount the amount Forum where
. relates ] .
Dues in Rs. dispute is
Name of the pending
Statute

Income Tax Act, | Income tax 83,17,999 AY.2013-14 CIT(A)
1961

Finance Act, | Service Tax 585426 1 F.Y.2004-2005 | CESAT,
1094 to F.Y. 2011~ Ahmedabad
2012

viii. According to information and explanations given to me, the Company has
not surrendered or disclosed any unrecorded transaction as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Hence, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

ix. (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from
banks and financial institutions. The company has taken loan from

or interest thereon during the year.




(d)
(e)
v
x.  {(a)
(b)
xi. (a)

(c)

Thg Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and
there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year
and hence, reporting under clause 3(x){(a} of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully or partly or optionally) and hence, reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Accordingly to information and explanation provided to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

No report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies

Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause
(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable and details have been disclosed in the Ind AS
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards.
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Xiv.

XV,

XVi.

Xvii.

xviit,

Xix.

(a) fn my opinion and based on my examination, the company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the year
under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to me, the Company
has not entered into non-cash fransactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
commented upon.

a) In my opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In my opinion, there is no core investment company within the
Group {as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi}(d) of the Order is not applicable.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has incurred cash losses aggregating to Rs. 43.74 lacs
during the current financial year and an amount of Rs. 113.15 Lacs in the
immediately preceding financial year.

During the year there was a change in auditor of the company as the
tenure of the previous Auditors M/s G. K. Choksi & Co. had come to an
end under the provisions of the Act.

No concern raised by the previous auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Ind AS Financial Statements, my knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on my examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to my
attention, which causes me to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. |, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
| further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and | neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

e




xx.  In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
me, the provisions of section 135 are not applicable. Accordingly, the

provisions of Clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xxi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial
statements for the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

FOR H.C.VORA & ASSOCIATES
[Firm Registration No. 119196W)
Chartered Accountants :

HIMANSHU C VORA
(Proprietor) '

Mem. No. 103203 :
UDIN: 22103203AJFMLP3741

Place : Mumbai
Date : 11" May, 2022




Annexure B

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

| have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Comtrade
Commodities Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction

with my audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controf
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements based on
my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. My audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with
Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion, the Company has, in alt material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these ind AS Financial Statements
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR H.C.VORA & ASSOCIATES
[Firm Registration No. 119196W}
Chartered Accountants :
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HIMANSHU C VORA -
(Proprietor)
Mem. No. 103203 _
UDIN: 22103203AJFMLP9741 -

Place : Mumbai
Date : 11" May, 2022




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known os Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Balance Sheet

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

ASSETS

Financial assets

{a) Cash and cash eguivalents

(b} 8ank balances other than ¢ash and cash equivalents
{c) Trade receivables

{d) Loans

{e} Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

() Current tax assets (net)

(b} beferred tax assets

(¢} Property, Plant and Equipment
{d) Other intangible assets

{e) Other non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABIITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
{a) Trade payabtles
{1} Trade payabtes

fi) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
{i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(b} Borrowings {other than debt securities)

(c} Other financial Eabilities

Non-financial liabkilities

{a} Provisions
th) Other ron-financiat liabilities

EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUHTY

Significant accounting poticies and notes to the financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For H.C, Vora & Asscciates
Chortered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 119196W

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 11, 2022

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{Audited) {Audited)
2 6,460.07 5,206.66
3 11,205.90 11,118.54
4 - -
5 . .
[+ 2,957.93 3,544.09
20,627.90 20,869.28
7 8,251.50 10,104.79
8 200.27 255.84
9 46.96 87.47
10 - 202
11 6,164.74 5,848 44
14,663.46 16,298.56
35,281.36 37,167.85
12
- 98.39
§,484.05 8,887.57
13 14,614.36 11,377.22
14 158.75 484 15
23,258.15 20,867.33
15 55.00 11.48
16 94.52 34.76
149.62 46.22
17 2,30,000.00 2,90,000.00
18 (2,78,116.42) {2,73,745.70)
11,883.58 16,254,320
35,291.36 37,167 .85
1-41

For and on behalf of the Board of Director
e

Rajeei Khandal

-
jesh Mendon
Executive Director

DIN:D7627485

Mon Executive Directar
DIN:07340336

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 11, 2022




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited}

Statement of Profit and Loss
{Currency . Indian rupees in thousands)
Revenue from operations
interest income
Fotal Revenue from operations
Other income
Tetal Income
fxpenses
Finance costs
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee banefits expense
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
QOther expenses
Total expenses
Loss before tax
Tax expenses:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Loss/Profit for the Year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of * 10 each}:
(1) Basic
{2) Dituted

For the year ended For the year ended

Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1% 534.74 686.67
534.74 686.67

20 217.30 4,669.1]
752.05 5,355.78

21 1,615.04 4,165.91
22 - 2,084.27
23 2,112.80 2,872.92
9,10 26.27 100.25
24 1,398.08 3,628.60
5,152.18 18,861.95

(4.400.14} {13,505.67)

55.58 1,556.97

(4,455.71} {15,062.64)

85.00 {2,475.00)

85.00 {2,475.00)

(4,370.71) {17,537.64)

26 (2.15) {0.52}
{0.15) {0.52)

This s the Staternent of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For H.C. Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 119196W

Proprietor

~
. M. No. Ay
Membership No: 103203

S d0303 7
.‘TL{\ Mumbay )é‘},’
"‘&ﬂ- W 5
Place: Mumbai N W
Date: May 11, 2022 . s

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vo’

~

Rajeev Khandal
Non Exegutive Director

ajesh Mendon
Executive Director
DIN:07627485

DIN:07340336

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 11, 2022




Comirade Commaodities Services Limited

{formerly known as Edetweiss Comtrade Limited)
Statement of changes in equity

[Currency : Indian rupees in thousands}

a Equity share capital
Particulars

Balance at April 01, 2020

Changes in equity share capital {Shares issued during the

year)

Balance at March 31, 2021
Changes in equity share capital
Balance at March 31, 2022

b Other £quity

Particulars

Balance at Aprit 01, 2020

Loss for the year

Cther comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2021 {Ind AS)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2022 (Ind AS}

For H.C. Vora & Asscciates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo. 119196W

Proprietor
Membership No:

Amount
29,00,00,000
29,00,00,000
29,00,00,000

Deemed cagital Retained Earnings Total

contribution - ESOP

2,514.14 {2,58,722.72} (2,56,208.58)
{15,062.64) (15,062.64)
(2,475.00) {2,475.00}
(17,537.64) (17,537.64)
#,514.14 {2,76,260.35) {2,73,746.20)
{4,455,22} {3,455.22}
- 85.00 85.00
- {4,370,22) {4,370.22}
2514.14 {2,80,630.58) {2,78,116.42)

AW

ajesh Mendon
Executive Director
DiN:07627485

Place: Mumbat
Date: May 11, 2022

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

vhwwf

feev Khandal

Non Executive Director
DIN:07340336




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited

{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)
Cash Flow Statement

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/Loss before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amartization expenses

Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables
Interest income on tax refund

Write off the security deposit

Provision for compensated absences

Loss/ {Profit) on sale/ write-off of fixed assets {net}
Interest income

Interest expense

Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Adjustments for working capital changes

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease inloans and other financial assets
{Increase) in other non-financial assets

Decrease in trade payables

{Decrease) in other financial liabilities

Increase /ldecrease) in non financial liabitities
{Decrease) in Provision

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash used in operating activities - A
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets
Sale of fixed assets
Interest received
Bank depaosit
Net cash generated from f{used in} investing activities - B

C  Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment/Proceeds from unsecured lgan™
interest paid

Net cash generated fram {used in)/ financing activities - C
Net increase/ {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the baginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Note:
*Net figures have been reported on account of Volume of transactions

for H.C. Vora & Associatas
Chartered Accountants
Firrrs Registration No. 119136W

Hi ]
Proprietor
Membership No: 1

m. . Vara

Piace: Mumbal
Date: May 13, 2022

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
(4,400.14) {13,505.67)
26.27 100.25
- {5,488.48)
(197.46) {389.48)
241,46 .
$6.50 .
{0.20) 808
(534.74) 1686.57)
1,613.36 4,167.60
(3,196.13) {15,794.33)
- 12,906.15
344.70 6,473.95
{231.30} {2,386.62)
(511,92} 19,583.03)
(334,40} 13,400.90)
59.86 {927.79)
[12.97} {200.63)
(3,881.15) (12,908.18)
(2,050.,74) 111.41
(1,830.40) {13,019.59)
[0.12) {5.61)
16.58 £2.68
- £06.27
443.38 {1,481.00)
459.83 (817.65)
3,490.54 115,559.68)
{1,866.56) {3,962.62}
1,623.98 {19,522.30}
253.41 133,359.54)
6,206.66 39,566.20
6,460.07 6,206.66

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Executive Director
DIN:G7627485

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 11, 2022

Rajeev Khandal
Nen Executive Director
DIN:07340336




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
Cash Flow Statement {continued)

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

Borrowings other than debt securities
Total liabilities from financing activities

Particulars

Borrowings other than debt securities

Total liahilities from financing activities

April 01, 2021 Cash Amount expensed March 31, 2022
flows in P & L Statement
11,377.21 1,623.98 1,613.16 14,614.35
11,377.21 1,623.98 1,613.16 14,614.35
April 01, 202¢ Cash Amount March 31, 2021
flows expensedin P & L
Statement
76,731.91 {19,522.30) 4,167.60 11,377.21
26,731,091 (19,522.30) 4,167.60 11,377.21




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.

1.1.

1.2,

Background and Significant Accounting policies

Background

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited (“the Company”} was incorporated in India on 31 March 1995. The
Company is a 100% subsidiary of Edefweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited which in turnis a 160%
subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,

The Company is a member of Multi-commadity Exchange of India Limited, National Commodity and
Derivatives Exchange Umited and NCDEX e Markets Limited (formerly known as NCDEX Spot

Exchange Limited). The Company has ceased to carry on broking business and exploring other trading
business.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as
amended from time to time).

The entity has ceased its operations and does not have any business activity planned for future.
The management is in the process of evaluating a plan to either merge this entity with its parent
or a group company or voluntary liguidate the company on completion of any pending regulatory
formalities. As of 31 March 2022, the company’s current assets is sufficient to cover its current
liabilities and the financial statements are prepared on a non going concern basis,

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR) except when otherwise indicated.

1.2.1 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India, resulting in
significant volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and India’s economic

activities.The pandemic and its consequent adverse effect on the econamy also adversely impacted
the financiat markets.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s management has assessed the impact of the
pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its investments as at March 31, 2022
based on estimate of the future results and various internal and external information available upto
the date of approval of these financial statements. The estimates as at the date of approval of these
financial results may differ based on the ongoing impact of the pandemic and the timing of the
improvement in the economy and the financial markets , but would not affect the entity materially.




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.3,

14.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity in compliance with the Division lIl of the
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12
months after the reporting date {current} and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—
current) is presented in Note 28.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to
settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

* The normal course of business
*  The event of default
® The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

Recognition of interest

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR} method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOC. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially
different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle
(including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

1.5 Financial Instruments

1.5 Financial Instruments{continued)

a) Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Q)

by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises borrowings when
funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financia! instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss,

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. in those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

1.6 Classification of financial instruments

a)

Financial assets;

The Company classifies ail of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the

assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortised cost
Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)
Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in

order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.6 Classification of financial instruments(continued)

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both individually
and in aggregate {even if frequent).

If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale approximate the
collection of the remaining contractua! cashflow

Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair vaiue

through other comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

Amortized cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of aliocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter peried, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recegnition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument
on initial recognition,

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,




Comtrade Commaodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edetweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.8.1

b)

Classification of financial instruments{continued)

to be measured at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial Habilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit ar loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company's own equity instruments,

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liahilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantiaily, it becomes a new asset, with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded.




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.8

1.8.2

1.83

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities{continued)

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR,

the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded

Derecognition of financial assets {other than due to substantial modification)

A financiat asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

* The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset; or

* Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing financial Hability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or meodification is treated as a derecognition of the ariginal financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised
as new financial liability, would be recognised in profit or toss.




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates aver the expected life of the receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. However if receivables contain a significant financing component, the

Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general approach
to measure expected credit losses.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment loss ar reversal of impairment loss in the profit or loss for all financial

instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

1.10 Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible,
The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real
estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting
agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet. However, the fair
value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception
and re-assessed on a periodical basis, However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities
relating to margining requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued
using models.

1.11 Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

1.12 Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

toszag” 7}
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Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

112 Determination of fair value{continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to self the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either;

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values
have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarised below:

¢ Level 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access
to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance
sheet date.

* Llevel 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the Instrument’s life.

* Llevel 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the
adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
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1.12

113

1.14

1.14.1

1.14.2

1.143

Determination of fair value(continued)

estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the leveliing at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument

basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting
pericd.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable} is
measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract and
its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. Where the consideration

promised is variable, the Company excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are
constrained,

Brokerage income on commodities broking business is recognised as per contracted rates at the
execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of
related sub-brokerage expenses, goods and service tax (“GST”), transaction charges and stock
exchange expenses.

Operating leases

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019

Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore
comparative information has not been restated. This means comparative information is still
reported under ind AS 17.

Company as a lessee:

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 April 2019, the Company considers whether a
contract js, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.
To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract is or contains lease

Measurement and recognition

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
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1.14

1.14.1

1142

Operating leases(continued)

measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments
made in advance of the lease commencement date {net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease if that rate is readily available or at the incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
for interest. it is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the carresponding

adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced to zero

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term
leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease
payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Company classified leases that transfer substantiatly all
the risk and reward of ownership as finance leases. Assets held under other leases are classified
as operating lease and were not recognised in Company Balance sheet. Payments made under
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual
terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period.
As a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

i
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1.15

1.16

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity

shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for
the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings

share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all potential equity shares.
Retirement and other employee benefit

a) Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a
defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b} Gratuity

The Company'’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.
The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are
funded with an Insurance company approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority (IRDA).

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
exctuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
ptan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspanding debit or credit to retained
earnings through QCl in the period in which they occur,

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods

c} Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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1.18

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that are

granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in statement of profit and loss such
thatthe cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
"ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting
period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a
different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful
life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and eguipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and
properties under construction} less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of
disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated
the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the
Schedule 1l for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as
follows:
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1.19

1.20

Property, plant and equipment{continued)

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount
of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the
timeof replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is
recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributabie to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangibles such as software is amortised over a period of 3 years
or its estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
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1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

Impairment of non-financial assets{continued)

impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no langer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum
of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effact of the time
value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probabie that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is
disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are alse disclosed when there is 2 possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-gccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of
resgurces in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabifities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses
Incomne tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

a) Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable prefit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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1.23  Income tax expenses{continued)

b} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generaily recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temparary difference,
unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable
temporarydifferences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible
temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this
is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that: ‘

* the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
tempeorary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

* tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

c) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

]
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1.24
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1.26

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1.23, the
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance
of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset
was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is
not appropriate whether there has been a change in business mode! and so a prospective change
to the classification of those assets

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
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1.26

1261

1.26.2

1.27

Key sources of estimation uncertainty{continued)

are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

tmpairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requiras
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase

in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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{Currency : indian rupees in thousands)

2 Cash and cash eguivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

3 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

- Short term deposits with banks
- Accrued interest on fixed deposits
(other bank deposits with maturity less than 32 months}

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

5,460.07 5,206.66
6,460.07 6,206.66
11,059.99 10,881.00
149,91 137.54
11,208.90 11,118.54
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(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
4 Trade receivables (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Particulars Amont

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach :
Impairment allowance as on April 01, 2020 5.488.46
Add: asset originated or acquired (net) (9,488.46)
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2021 -
Add: asset originated or acquired (net) -
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2022 .
Provision matrix for trade receivables :
Trade receivables days pést due 1-90 days 91-180 days  more than 180 Tdtal

days

‘March 31, 2022 _
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default - -
_'ECL'— Simplified approach N -
Net carrying amount N

March3t, 2024 R | |
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default - - .

ECL - Simplified approach _ . ST .
Net carrying amount a '
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
5 Loans
(At amortised cost, unsecured, within India)

Employee Loans - Gross carrying amount
Less: Provision for Restructured Advance

As at
March 31, 2022

155.21
(155.21)

March 3

1,2021

15521
155.p1)
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Comtrade Commadities Services Limited
{(formerly known us Edefweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

6  Other financial assets

Deposits placed with exchange/ depositories
Margin with exchange/ clearing house
Advances recoverable in cash

Note:
Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise

Asat
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

2,750.00 3,000.00
101.33 260.49
106.61 283.60

2,957.93 3,544.09
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Notes to the financial statements [Continued]

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

7 Current tax assets {net)

Advance income taxes

8  Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference betwean book and tax depreciation

Employee benefit ehligations
Provision for compensated absences

Unused tax losses
Others (Preliminary expenses)

Tl Mumis ? ‘;’ )
4 | _/
"

-
A

As at
March 21, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

8,251.4% 10,105.79
8,251.49 10,105,792
186.42 228.41
13.84 076

- 26.68
260.27 255.84




Comitrade Commeodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Kotes to the financial statements {Contitued)
{Currency : tndian rupees in thousands)

9a  Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Black A d Depreciation Mt Block
Description of Assets ) As at  Additions during  Disposals during As at Asat Charge forthe  Disposals during As at Al at
April 1, 2021 the year the year March 31, 2022 April 1,2021 year the year March 31, 2022]  M4rch 31; 2022
Office aquipment 18.35 - 18.3% 15.54 - 15.54 ‘A
Computers 334.91 0,12 289.56 4507 250.25 24.26 273 88 0.93 4415
Total 353.26 0.32 285.96 63.42 265.79 24.26 273.58 16.47 4696
10a  Property, Plant and Equipment
Gross Block Accurnulated Depreciation et Blocld
it i ; Is duri Asat  Charge f i i :
Description of Assets ] Asat Additions during  Disposals during As at ] 54 Charge for the  Disposals during As at A} at
April 1, 2021 the year the year March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 year the year March 31, 2022;  Mdych 31, 2022
Computer software 27.33 - - 27.33 25.32 202 - 27.33
Total 27.33 - - 27.33 25.32 2.02 - 27.33
9 Property, Plant and Equipment
Gross Black Accumulated Depreciation et Bloc
. As at  Additions during  Disposals during As at Asat Charge forthe  Disposals during As at Ak at
Description of Assets i i
April 1, 2620 the year the year March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 year the year March 31, 2021 Mgrch 31, 021
Furniture and Fixtures 31.05 . 31.05 - 18.42 274 1135 -
Mgter vehicles - - - - _ - |
Office equipment 18.35 - 18.35 15.37 QL7 15.54 181
Computers 133110 561 1,001.80 33491 1,096,383 94 35 340,93 250.25 B4.66
Total 1,380.50 5.61 1,032.85 353.26 1,130.62 27.26 962.09 265.79 a81.47
10b  Property, Flant and Equipment
Gross Block Ack lated Depreciation et Bloc!
. " As at  Additions during  Disposals during As at Asat Charge forthe  Disposals during As at :.c 5 at
Description of Assats Aprl1,2020 theyear the year March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 year the year March31, 2021]  mjjreh 33, Jo21
Camputer software 27.32 - . 27.33 2233 2.99 - 25.31 .02

Total 27.33 - - 27.33 22.33 2.99 - 25.32 - 102
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{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

11 Other non-financial assets
{Unsecured Considerad good, unless stated otherwise)

fnput tax credit

Contriution to gratuity fund {net)
Prepaid expenses

Vendar Advances

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
harch 31, 2021

5.981.14 5,793.06
153.00 36.00
11.05 12.38
19,56
6,164.74 5,848.44




Corntrade Commodities Services Limited
(farmeriy known as Edelweiss Comtrode Limited)

Notes to the finznclal statements {Continped]

(Currency ! Indian rupces 19 thousards)

Asar 25 a1

March 31, 2022 Klaren 31, 2021

12 Trade Payables frefer note 37}

Trade payables fram aon-related parties 5453 45 597293
Trade payables froen telated partics 0.60 2198
Total outskanding dues aof micro erarprises and small enterprises 98 39

Total sutstanding dues 1o craditors gther than micrg enterarizes and »mull 8,486.0% 439757

enterprives

lIncluttes surdry creditus prawision for axpenses and custamer payizhe) 5,484,05 8,995 95

Trade Payahle Apeing :-

Quistanding for March 51 223 frog March X1, 2031 of Pavient §

Particulars ! “Tot

Particulars Less thiv | Yoar 1.2 Years 23years | More than 3 years Total
11 MSME - . . . N
ik Ot S ARSI NS - - - KIAL03
Ot Diputed tues - MSME A s T - =
vt Bispited dues - Otliers - - - - N
Total A 405 - - - RANLDE
Trade Payable Apeiap -

Outstanding for March 31, 2424 Tram March M, 2020 of Payment

Parlicuta - Total

arficutars Less than 1 Year 12 Years 2Ayears | More than 3 years ol
it MSME - - (25 5.39
¢ 111 Others . [LINA]) 3.397.57
41i3) Bisputed dues - MSML - N - -
4iv) Dispuled dues - Qthers - - - - -
‘Fotat BU56.01 £0.53 - (. 55) Hs, 6

Unbilled oot due of March 2122 05 Rs 753,50 (0 bareh XI21- Ry 502941,




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known os Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

{Currency : Indtan rupees in thousands}

13 Borrowings {other than debt securities)
(At Amortised cost)

Unsecured,

Loan from refated parties

{Repayable on or before 31 March 2023 at interest rate 11.75% to
11.555% (Previous Year 11.75% to 11.55%)

14 Other financial Habilities

Other payables
Accrued salaries and benefits

Asat
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

14,614.36 11,377.22
14,614.36 11,377.22
147.00 492.15
12.75 2.00
159.75 494.13




Comtrade Commaodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
15 Provisions

Compensated absences 55,00 11.46
55.00 11.46

16 Cther non-financial fiabilities
Withholding taxes, Goods and service tax and other taxes payable 24,62 34.76
94,62 34.76

103703 :
Mumbas  } u,, ;

w
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Lomtrade Commoditles Services Limited
{oemerly kngwn a5 Egetweiy: Comtrede Limzed)

Neotes to the finandial statements (Continued)

SCurrancy : Ingian Fupees i theunaads|

Azt
March 21, 2022 Mare 31, 202
17 Equity share caphual
Autharised :
29.200.000 (Previous year, 13,000,300k wauity sl-ves af & 30 eac: 25,00,00,000 29,00.00.000
25,00,00,000 28 000,001
lysued, subscried and paid us:
29,000,000 (P-eu0us y2r 1,000,000} sy sharcs of 2 30 anch 2,530,000 296,009
250,008 2..007
@ Wieverent inshare capitol 1
March 33, 2012 Maren 3, 7021
Ho of sharks Amount Ne of rares Amount
Sunstanding 4t the brygnang of the year 2,90,00,000 2,50,000 1,99.00,000 2,90.308
Sharos rsued Suneg the vear R
Gutstanding 3t te and of thp yoar 2.90.00.000 L30,600 7.90.00.000 10030

A Terms/ rights attached ta equity shares

The Campany has ofiy ane clasy of Squity shares havirg a par walut of 30/ . Eacn nalaar ol equity shares s ontited 10 ong wo1e o1

thare neid in 17 event of kquidatian of the Comainy. the

moldirs of 6qusty shares wil Be entitied b recewe reraning ausets of the Company, after of il p AMounts The dniriutign vall be i geanaruon 1a thy rumber of veunty
shares held by the shareholders
Shares neld by the hufding company
31 March 2022 5 Morch 2021
No of shares % No st shases %

Holding comparry

Edehunss Rueal & Corparate Services Liruted £,90,00,000 160% 2.00,00,000 004
(rHclding Company and s Namipes)

2,96,60,000 1o6% 2.2.00.001] 1005
Aot fun gt
March 31, 2022 Wlarch 3t 202%
18 OtherEgunty
Oeemed capitel tontribution - ESOP frufer rome L 2,513.14 2,514.:4
244 - Addtions dunng the s .
2.514.14

Ogering Balinte - Retaned vacnengs {2.76.259.83) 12,58,722.200
Add: ProfitfiLays] far the year {4.855.72) (39,362 681
A Atwr campeehoniha Acane for the yrar E5.00 12.%75 003

Retained Earni

Closing Baranice 12.30.620.56) 125,759 £3)

{2,78,116.42) 12.74,735 705

Hote No.1 Deemed capltal cameribution - E507
Coctain of the Lompasy’s SrpioyRes bave beon grasted opLiens 1o acqure eapdy shares of the Linmare Parear Company [Eoshwerss Finaneal Services [imieds
This eserve soprevants the cast of these epnnns ased on the

fair vidug 3 thee Rranm dales a5 recopnised Buer the v
cxtent that the Linmate Parent Company hag 4ot regovered suck Cost Stam the Company

 period of such ontians, te the




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued]}

(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

for the year ended for the yedr ended
March 31, 2022 March B1, 2421
Revenue from operations
19 Interest Income

On financial asset measured at amortised cost. :
Interest income on fixed deposits 534.74 686l67
534.74 686[67

20  Other income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net) 0.20 :
Miscellaneous income 217.10 166911
217.30 #,66911

b ¢

23




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

21

22

23

* The Hotding Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {"EFSL"}) has Employee Stock Option Plans in force.
Based on such ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would
vest in a graded manner to company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair
value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employge
cost.

Finance costs
{On Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

Interest on Loan from Holding Company
Financial and bank charges
Interest - others

impairment on financial instruments ‘

{On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost)
Bad-debts written off

Provision for expected credit losses - Trade Receivable and
Receivable towards Margin trading facility

Employee benefit expenses

- Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

for the year ended
March 31, 2022

for the year emdea
March 31, 2021

4,167.60

1,613.16
1.73 1.69
0.14 -

1,615.04 4,165.91

- 7,582.72

- {5,48&8.45

- 2,094.27
1,972.72 2,742.65
90.53 86.01
49.54 73.76
2,112.80 2,872.92
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(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

24

24a

Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration {refer note 26a below)
Communication

insurance

Legal and professional fees
Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repairs and maintenance
Computer expenses
Computer software

Clearing & custodian charges
Loss on sale of of properrty, plant and equipment
Membership and subscription
Office expenses

Postage and courier

ROC Expenses

Goods & Service tax expenses
Stock exchange expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges
Miscellaneous expenses
Other Expenses

Auditors' remuneration:
As Auditors

for the year ended

for the year ended :

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
411.00 397j00
72.35 358}00
- 18146
100.19 1,153{41 .
2.16 j
10.00 7i50°
- 1,07139
38.16 65(02
- 18,82
96.25 61,60
75.00 75,00
- 808
- 0,05
231.19 51952
- 045
26.53 j
84.20 876
4.59 1,00:
. 432441
- 0,07
246.46 5,424/04
- 801
1,398.08 9,628,60
411,00 397,00
411.00

397,00:




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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25 Income Tax

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Particutars
Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of
prior years
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal
of temporary differences
Total tax charge
Current tax
Deferred tax
25a Reconciliation of total tax charge
Particulars
Accounting profit before tax as per financial
statements
Tax rate (in percentage)
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax
rate
Effect of non-deductikble expenses:
Penalties
Others
Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset
on current-period losses

Imnpact of tax rate changes (between two
accounting periods)

Cthers

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

25h

Deferred taxes in relation to:

:Prop_erty, Plant and Equ:pmentand Intérigibles .

‘Employee benefits obligations
Others
Total

Deferred taxes in relation to:

Property, Plant and Equipment and lnféhgiblés
“rade receivables U
‘Employee benefits obligations

Gthers
Total

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

55.58 1,556.97
55.58 1,556.97
55,58 1,556.97

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(4,400.14) {13,505.67)
0.25 0.25
{1,107.07} (3,398.03}
0.04
. 541.26
1,162.61 5,036.44
- {622.71)
55.58 1,556.97

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Movement for the year ended March 31, 2022

: Opening deferred Racoghised in Recognised in Total Closing deferred
tax asset as per . Statement of profit other movement tax asset / as pe
Ind AS & loss comprehensive ind AS
income
22841 {41.59) {41.95) 186.42
0.75 13.09 13.09 1384
26.68 (26.68) {26.68) )
255,84 (55.58) - {55.58) 200.37
Movement for the year ended March 31, 2021
\ Opening deferred Recognised in Recognised in Tatal Closing deferret
" taxasset as per  Statement of profit other movement  tax asset as per 1jpd
ind AS & loss comprehensive AS
incame
282.08 (53.67) _ (53.67) 22881
1,381.34 11,381.34; - {1,381.34) -
53.38 (52.62) {52.62) o7s
96.02 (69.34) {69.34) 26l68
1,812.81 {1,556.97) - [1,556.91 25584
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(Currency : Indian rupees in thousan&s}

25¢ Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

As at March 31, 2022

Unused tax losses

Financial Year to which the loss ' Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Loss/ Short term capital loss Totzl
relates to '
Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year - Amount
financial year financial year
2015-16 . 86862  Noexpiry 2,22,309.03 2023-24 2,23,177|65
2016-17  BIBS6  Noexpiry 6602301 202425 66,841)58
2017-18 70530  No expiry 49,286.65  2025-26 44,991/95 -
2018419 . 72759 No expiry 25,767.72  2026-27 26,4951
2019-20 ' 45819 Noexpiry 15,090.19  2027-28 | 15,549038 -
2020-21 - 32050 Noexpiry 1949313 2028-29 19,813/63
2021-22 ' 20494 Noexpiry 110.19 2028-29 31513
Totat 7 4,104.71 3,97,965.73 4,0%,18462
As at March 31, 2021 Unused tax losses
Financial Year to which the loss Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Loss/ Short term capital loss Total
relates to
Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year - Amount
financial year financial year :
2015-16 ‘ 868.62  No expiry 2,22,309.03  2023-24 22,31,71,645(00
201617 o 81856  No expiry 66,023.01  2024-25 6,68,41,577100
2017-18 - ‘ 70530 No expiry 49,286.65 2025-26 ©4,99,91,948/00
2018-19 o | 72759 Noexpiry 25,767.72  2026-27 2,64,93,30800
201920 45319 Noexpiry 15,090.19  2027-28 1,55,49,378/36
2020-21 N 32050  No expiry 19,493.13  2028-29 1,98,1%,630[77
Total o 3,899.76 3,97,969.73 13

40,18,69,487
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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26 Earnings Per Share

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Shareholders earnings (as per Statement of Profit and loss) {4,455.71) {15062 B4)
b. Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares

Number of Shares at the beginning of year 2,90,00,000 2,90j00,0p0
Number of Shares issued during the year -

Total no of equity sahres outstanding at the end of the year 2,90,00,000 2,80 00,000

dilution 2,90,00,000 2,90J00,0p0

Basic earnings per share (0.15} (052)

Diluted earnings per share {0.15) (0B2)
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27.Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 - Employee benefits

{a) Defined cantribution to provident fund, employee state insurance fund and employees death linked insurance

Ameunt of Rs. 74,50 (Previous year: Rs. 165.22) is recognized as expenses in "Employee benefit expenses” — Note 25 in the

statement of profit and loss

(b} Defined benefit plans [Gratuity)

The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present Value of DBO at Start of the year 147.00 1,382.00,
Service Cost
3. Current Service Cost 33.00 13.00
b. Past Service Cost - -
¢. Lossf{Gain} from Settlement - -
Interest Cost 4.00 33.00
Benefits Paid - {522.00)
Re-measurements - -
a. Actuarial Less/{Gain) from changes in demegraphic assurnptions 3.00 2.00
b. Actuaria! Loss/{Gain) from changed in financials assumptions (6.00) 2.00
¢, Actuarial Loss/{Gain) fram experience over last past year 46.00 15.00|
Effect of acquisition / [divestiture) - -
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Transfer (Out} (61.00) {778.00)
Present Value of BBC ar end of the year 166.00 147.00]

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asset

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year 12,150.00 10.267.00|
Contributions by Employer - 522.00!
Benefits Paid - (522.00)
Intergst income Plan Assets 6506.00 $63.00:
Re-measurements - -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the ng 394.00 1,320.00
Efect of acquisition / (divestiture) - -
Changes in foreign exchange rate - E
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 13,150.00 12.150.00
Actual Return on Plon Assets 1,000.00 1,883.00

Expected Employer Contributions for the caming year

Recenciliation of Asset ceiling

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Assets celling at start of the year 11,967.00 7,764 00|
interest Income on Assets cefling 598.00 427 .00
Re-measurements - -
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset
ceiling excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined 266.60 3,776.00
benafit liability/ {asset)
Agsets ceiling at end of the year 12,831.00 11,967.00

’ 103203 )?,..
‘5&\ Mumbar )5,";
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(formerly known as Edetweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements [Continued)
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27.Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits (continued)

Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 33.00 13.001
b.Past Service Cost
<.L035/{Gain) from Settlement
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (4.00) {103.00}
Changes in foreign exchange rate
Employer Expenses 29.00¢ {80.004
Net Liabitity / (Asset) recognised in the Balance shaet
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present Value of DOB 166.00 147.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets 13,150.00 12,150.00:
Liability / {Asset} recognised in the Balance Sheet {12,984.00} {12,003.00)
Funded Status [Surplus/ (Deficit)] 12,984.00 12,003.00
Less: A_mcum not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to 12,831.00 11,967.00
asset ceiling]
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet 153.00 36.00
Of which, Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities:(Gain}/Loss 46.00 15.00
Percentage Break-dowrn of Total Plan Assets:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity instruments {5 3.00%
Debt instruments 0% 0.00%
Real estate 0% 0.00%
Derivatives .0 %% 0.50%.
fnvestment Funds with insurance Company 99,56 99.51%
Of which, Unit Linked A% 73.95%
Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Unked 254% 25.56%
Asset-backed securities {105 0.00%
Struciured debt 1L % 0.00%
Cash and cash equivalents 1.5 % 0.49%
Total LILIR 100.00%
Actyarial assumptians:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salary Growth Rate {% p.a.} T% 7%
Discount Rate (% p.a.} 5.90% 5%
Withdrawal Rate [% p.a.) 5.00% 25%
Senior N
Middle 16% -
Juniar 16%
Mortality 16%
Interest Rate on Net DBO/ {Asset] (% p.a ) ALM 2012-14 (Ultinsate) 1ALM 2012-14 {Ultimate)
Expected Weighted Average Remaining Waorking Life {years) 4 3
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27.Disclosure pursuant t¢ Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {continued)

Movement in Other Comprebensive intome:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Balance at start of year {Loss}/ Gain (6,551.00) {4,078.00)
Re-meosyrements on DEO - .
a.Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from changes in demographic assumptions {3.00} {2.00}
b.Actuarial Loss/tGain} from changad in financials assumptions 6.00 {2.00)
c.Actuarial Loss/{Gain) from experience oveér last past year {36.00) {15.0G)
Re-megsurements on Plan Assets - -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interast on the
net definedpbenefil liahility / (afset} ? 394.00 1.320.00
Re-measurements an Asset Ceiling - -
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset
ceiling exciuding amount included in net interest on the net defined {266.00) {3,776.00)
benefit liability/ {asset)
Balance at end of year [Loss)/ Gain (6,466.00) (6,551.00}
Sensitivity Analysis:
DOB increases / (decreases } by March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 10.06 6.0G
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate {9.c0} {6.00)
1% Increase in Discount Rate (9.c0} {6.00)
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 10.00 §.00
1 % Increase ih Withdrawal Rate - Negligible change
1 % Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 1.00 Negligible change
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year} - Negligibte change
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) - Negligibie change
tdovement in Net {Liabiliy}/ Asset:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net (Liabiiity}/ Asset at start of year 36.00 1,121.00!
Net {Acquisition} / Divestiture - -
Nat Transfer (in)/ Out 61.00 778.00
Movement during the year - -
Current Service Cost (33.00} {13.00}
Past Service Cast - -
Net Interest on net DBC 4.00 103.00]
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Re-measurements 85.60 {2.475.00}
Contributions / Benefits - 52200
Surpius / (Deficit] at end of year 153.00 36.00
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28 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities 2nalysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Within 12 months  After 12 months Total " Within 12 months  After 12 months Tdtal :
Financial assets ) :
Cash and cash equivalents 6,460.07 6,460.07 6,206.66 - b,206.56
Other bank balances 11,209.56 . 11,209.90 11,118.54 - - 1111854
Trade receivables . - . . i
Loans - - - - - S
Other financial 2ssets 2,857.93 - 2,957.93 3,544.09 - 3,544 ho
20,627.90 - 20,627.90 20,868.29 - 0,869 po
Non-financial assets :
Current tax assets (net) 19,861.00 (£1,509.50) 8,251.50 1,975.49 1 5129.31 10,104 579
Deferred tax assets {net] 20027 ' 20027 255.84 : 255.84
‘Property, plant and equipment 2696 4696 87.47 87,87
Other intangible assets R - 2.02 pz .
Other non-financial assets §,164.74 6,163.74 5,848,43 5,848 13
26,272.97 {11,609.50) 14,662.47 8,169.25 8,129.31 16,298.55
Tatal assets 46,900.86 {11,609.50) 35,291.37 29,038.54 8,129.31 17.167k4
March 31, 2022 March 31, 20_21 :
Particulars ‘Within 12 months  After 12 months Total Within 12 months  After 12 months Tital
financial liabilities ' ‘ e
Trade payables 8,484.05 ' 848405 8,995.96 . 3,995 b6 )
14,614.36 14,614.36 1377p1
Borrowing [other than debt securities) . - _ 11377.21 - :
Cther financia! Rabilities 159.75 - 159.7% 434,15 - 49415
: 23,258.15 . 23,258.15 20,867.33 - 40,867 53
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - - - :
Provisions ' 55.00 ) 55.00 1146 1146
Other non-financial liabilities 9462 - 94.62 34.76 - 3476
' o 149.62 - 149.62 46.23 - a6h3
Total liabilities 23,407.77 - 23,407.77 20,913.55 - 0,913)55

¢ .
\F‘* N Mumba,

103703

=

28A With respect to financial instruments not measured at fair value, their carrying amounts approximates fair value




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

29 Contingent liabilities, Capital and other commitments

a. Lega! claims
The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened elementj of -
litigation risk inherent in its operations. As a result, the Company is involved in various litigation, arbitratfon .
and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. The Company has formal controls and :
policies for managing legal claims. Based on professional legal advice, the Company provides and/or discloges
amounts in accordance with its accounting policies. At year end, the Company had several unresolved legal -
claims however individually any of the claim is not material. The aggregate value of claim against the .
Company is Rs. 2,543.60.

h. Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt 2,543.60 2,543.60
(b} Taxation matters 8,903.43 8,903.43

c. Capital and other commitments

Capital commitments - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for - Rs. Nil {Previous year : Rs. Nil.)
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30, Related Party Transactions

(Currency: Indian rupees)

Disclosure of Related parties as reqquired under Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosure”
(2} Names of related parties by whom control is exercised

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Ultimate holding company
fdelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited™

{b) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

£del Land Limited

ECL Finance limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limitad

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited

{b) Fellow associates with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

Edelweiss Broking Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited

Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited

*Pursuant to the Scheme of Amafgamation ("the Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 | the Act) and the Rules made there under {the
Rules), as sanctioned by the Natianal Company Law Tribunal , Mumbai Bench vide its arders dated 23 August 2017 and the National Company Law Tribunal,
Myderabad Bench vide its order dated 13 Apeil 2018, Ofive Business Centre Limited {“the First Transferor Company”), Burfington Business Solutions Limited {"the
Second Transferor Company”), Auris Corporate Centre Limited ("the Third Transferor Company”), Serenity Business Park Limmited {"the Fourth Transferor
Company”} and Eternity Business Centre Limited {"the Fifth Transferor Company”) {collectively referred to as the Transferor Companies), the wholly owned
subsidiaries of ECap Equities Limited, {the Transferee Company} ha¢ been amalgamated with the Transferee Company with effect from 1 April 2017 {“the
Appointed Date”). The Scheme has been effective from 21 April 2018 ['the Effective Date”}.

*Accordingly, 2l the related party transactions entered during the year and the outstanding balances thereof as stated at the end of the year relating to the
Transferor Companies are considered to be entered with the Transferee Company and accordingly mciuded in the related party transactions disclosure of the
Company
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3G. Related Party Transactions {continued)

Transactions with related parties ;

{ Amount in Rs. }

5r. for the Year ended For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name
No., rty March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current account transactions
1 Short terrn loans taken from { Max credit} Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,000.00 26,600.15
2 Short term loans repaid 1o (Max Debit) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,200.00 34,000.00
Short term loans taken from { Aggragate of Edelweiss Rural & Carparate Services Limited 5,690.54 50,929.66
3 credit)
Short term loans repaid to (Aggregate of debit}  Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,200.00 66,489.34
a
. 158.17 1,216.85
delwei iaf § imited *
5 Margin repaid to clearing house {max of credit} Edelweiss Custodial Services Limite
. . 473.91 961.13
Edelweiss 3t lmited
6 Margin repaid 1o clearing house {agg of cradit) ehweiss Custodial Services Limite
7 Margin placed with clearing house (agg of debit) Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 314.73 .
8 Interest paid on loan Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,613.16 4,167.60
S  Reimbursemant received from Edelweiss Broking Limited - 805.00
10 Cost reimbursement paid to ECL Finance Limited - 0.16
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited{Formerly £CL) - 271.32
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 2.95
Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Ltd. Employees 1.18 312.87
Ecap Equities Limited 3.18
11 Rentpaidto Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 39.31
ECap Equlties Limited 449.04
Edelweiss Broking Limited 16.78
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 513
£CL Finance Limited 174.69
12 Fixed assets purchased from Edebweiss Broking Limited - 5.61
Edel Land Limited 0.12
13 Fixed assets soid to Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited - 350
Edelweiss Globat Wealth Management Limited 3.87 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 182
Edel investment Limited 1.53 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.29 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 9.30 57.56
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Disclosure of Related parties as required under ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosure” (Continued)

30.Related Party Transactions [ Continued )

Sr.

Nature of Transacticn
Ne,

Balances with related parties

14 Equity share capital held by

15 Short term borrowings

16 Trade Payabies to

17  Other Payahle

12 Interest accrued and due on loan taken

19 Other receivable from

20 Margin placed with clearing house

Related Party Name

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ECap Equities Limited

fdelweiss Asset Management Limitad
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edebweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited
fdetweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited
Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services timited

Edeiweiss Custodial Services Limited

For the Year ended
March 31, 2622

2,98.000.00

14,463 01

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

2.90.000.00

10,972.47

0.01
3.83
19.15

251.00
13217
108.91

024

404,75

10851
95.20
74.22

260.52

Note 1 : Loan given/taken to/from parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ from related parties are disclosed based on the maximum/aggregate
of debit and credit amount given/taken and placed / refund received during the reporting period.

Note 2 : Disclosure under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 for loans and guarantee : Loans have been given for generat business purpose.
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31 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed capital requmements
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics fits:
activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return ¢ apital to
shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, polictes and processes from the previous years. However, they afe
under constant review by the Board,

In addition to above, the Company is required to maintain minimum networth as prescribed by various regulatory authorities. The management ensurep
that this is complied.

Particulars 3% March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Debt 14,614.36 11,377.21
Equity 11,883.58 16,254.29

Net Debt to Equity 1.23 0.70
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32 .Risk Management

The company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities. it is managed through an
integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring. subject to risk
limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, lquidity risk and market risk, It is also subject to various operating and business risks

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management
strategies and principles.

The Board has appointed the Risk Committee which is respensible for monitoring the overall risk process within the
Company and reports to the Audit Committee

The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles,
frameworks. policies and limits

The Global Risk Group is responsibie for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independen
control process is maintained. The Group works clesely with and reports to the Risk Committee. to ensure that procedure
are compliant with the overall framework.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss the Company may face due o current/potential inability or unwillingness ol a
customer or counterparty to meet financial /contractual obligations. Credit risk also covers the possibility of losses
associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counterparties. The Company has adopted a policy of
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating th
risk of financial loss from defaults

Liquidity Risk.

Liquidity risk emanates from the possible mismatches due to differences in maturity and repayment protile of assets and
labilities, To avoid such a scenario, the Company has maintained cash reserves in the form of Fixed Deposits, Cash,
Loans which are callable any time at the Company’s discretion. etc. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be
liquidated in a very short period of time. These would be to tuke care of immediate obligations while continuing to honodr
commitmeiies a8 = J0ing concern
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

32 Risk Management (continued}

A.  Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash Hows of the Company's non-derivative financial lizbilities as at the year end.
Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were ta be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will not reguest repayment on thi

date it coutd be required to pay.
As at March 31, 2022

Trade payables o
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Gther firancial liabilities

Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities

'Trade pévab{es o _
Berrowings {other than debt securities) )
Other financial Habilities

32 Risk Management {continued)

* Less than 3 months

Equal to or more

b carligft

B.  Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities

As at March 31, 2022

'Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances
Trade receivables

Loans
Other financial assets

Total undiscounted non-derivative financial assets

As at March 31, 2021

- Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances )

Trade receivables
Loans )
Other financial assets )
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial assets

Equeal to or more Equal to or more >3 years Totpl
than 3 months but  than 6 monthsbut  than 12 months but
less than 6 months | less than 12 months  less than 3 years :
8,484.05 - - B.454,06
14,614.36 - - - 14,614:35 .
159.75 - - - 15976
23,258.15 - - - 43,257,165
Less than 3 months  Equal to or more Equal {0 or more Equal to or more >3 years Total
) than 3 months but * than 6 manths but  than 12 months but
less than 6 months  less than 12 months  less than 3 years :
| 8,595.96 S - - 5,995,
11,377.21 - . 1,377,
4%4.15 - - - 494,
20,867.33 . - - ap,367:38
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Campany’s non-derivative financial assets as at the year end.
less than 3 manths  Equal to or more fqual to or mare fqual to or more » 3 years Totpl
than 3 months but  than 6 months but  than 12 months but
less than 6 months  less than 12 months  less than 3 years :
£,509.98 4.809.99 6,250.00 - 659,97 ¢
207.93 R 2,750.60 . 2,957,553
6,817.91 4,809.99 9,060.¢0 - 10,627_.%
Less than 3 months  Equal ta or more Equal to or more Ettual te or more > 3 years Totgpl
than 3 months but ~ than 6 moenths byt than 12 months but
less than 6 months  {ess than 12 months less than 3 years
7,825.20 325000 6,250.00 73250
Csaaps T 3,000,080 - 354409
8,369.29 3,250.00 9,250.00 " (,869.29

A

1
iy

/




Comtrade Commuodities Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

32 Risk Management (continued)

Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. They also shows theltotal

fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral {the extent to which the fair value of collateral held is greater than the exposuse to
which it relates}, and the net exposure to credit risk.

:As at March 31, 2022 Maximum exposure to Principal type of collatenral
: cradit risk (carrying
amount before ECL}

‘Financial assets

‘Trade receivables (Gross) - o - Securities, Bank Guarantee etd
Other financial assets B _ _ 2,957.93 Unsecured

Total 3,113.14

As at Mé.l.'.éh...."’nl, 2021 ' Maximum exposure to Pﬁncipal fype of collateral

credit risk {carrying
amount before ECL)

‘Financial assets

Loans e S 15521 Unsecured
Trade receivables (Gross) B o -~ Securities, Bank Guarantee etq,
‘Other financial assets 3,544.09 Unsecured

Total : 3,699.30




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)
32 Risk Management {continued}

Analysis of Financial assets and liabilities by Industry risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2022
‘Particulars

-Financial assets
‘Cash and cash equivalent - ‘ . 17,669.97
-and other bank balances

Trade and other receivables -

- Other Financial Assets | - 2,957.93  2,957.93
-Loans
- Total

Financial services Total

17,669.97

20,628.40 20,627.90

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2021
Particulars

Financial assets _ . . Sl
Cash and cash equivalentand other bank batances . 17,325.20 ¢ 17,325.20
Trade and otherreceivables _

Other Financial Assets 354409 3,544.09
Loans
Total

Financial services Total

20,869.29 20,869.29




Comtrade Commaodities Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : indian rupees in thousands)
32 Risk Management (continued)
Total market risk exposure

Fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, fomeign:

exchange rates and equity prices. The company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfoiios and
manages each of those portfolios separately.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
"Particulars Carrying amount Traded risk -~ Non-traded risk Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded r| 13
Assets :
Cash and cash 17,668.97 - 17,669.97 17,325.20 - 174325.20
equivalent and other :
bank balances
Loans - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - - - - -
Other Financial assets 2,957.63 - 2,957.93 3,544.09 - 3[544.09
Total 20,627.90 - 20,627.90 20,869.29 - 20[869.29
Liability : . 1
Borrowings {other than Debt E 14,614.36 - 14,614.36 11,377.21 - 1237731
Securities) : . .
Trade payables E 8,484.05 - 8,484.05 899596 - 81995.96
Other liabilities . 15975 - 159,75 - 494,15 - 494,15
3

Total . 23,258.15 - 23,258.15 20,866.83 - 20/866.5
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33

Note 1

Note 2

Following table sets out availability of Group financial assets to support funding

‘March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalent

including bank balance
Trade receivables

loans

Other financial assets

- Property, plant and equ]pment?

Other non financial assets
Total assets

March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalent

including bank halance
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Property, plant and equiprréentﬂ .

Other non financial assets
Total assets

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal o1]

other reason

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily

Pledge as Others {Note 1) Awvailable as Others (Note 2} Total carfying
collateral collateral amount :
4,000.00 - 13,669.97 . 17,469.97
- 10660 285133  2,957.98 -
_______ - - 4696 - #e9
- - - 6,164.74 6,164.74
4,000.00 - 13,823.52 9,016.07 26,3&0.5 D
Pledge as others (Note 1)  Availableas  others (Note 2) Total cajryir};
collateral collateral amount
4,137.54 | - 13,187.66 . - 17,325.2)
- 278.72 3,265.37 3,544.00
87.47 - 87.47
5,848.43 5,848.48
4,137.54 - 13,553.85 9,114.80 26,806.19

available to secure funding in the normal course of business




Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued]}
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34 Additional Disclosure on Fixed Depaosit

Fixed depasits aggregating to Rs, 4,000.00 (previous year: Rs. 4,000.00) have been pledged with exchanges for meeting base capital requirement
35, Cost Sharing

£delweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with feliow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, eiectricity charges etc. which is for
the common benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This tast 5o expended is reimbursed by the Companty or the basis of number of
ermployees. On the same ines, branch running costs expendad (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Campany. Accordingly, and as identified by
the management, the expenditure heads in note 25 include reimbursements paid and are nat of reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate

36. Brokerage income is disclesed net of related () sub-brokerage expenses Rs. Nil (provious year Rs. Nilhand (i) stock exchange expense Re.Nil {previous year Rs, Nil),
37.Details of dues to Micre enterprises and Small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs. Nii [Previous year: Rs. 98.39} payabie to "Suppliers” registered under the Micra, Small and Medium Entersrises Oevelopment Act, 2006, N interest has been
paid/ is payable by the Company during the vear to "Suppliers” registered undar this Act. The aforerrentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inguiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act

38.5egment Information

The Company has operated only in one business segment during the year viz, Agency based business comprising of broking and advisory services. Therefore, the Camparny has only one

reportable business segment, the results of which are disclosed in the financial statoments Further, there are no gepgraphical segments. Hence, no disclosures are required under
Segment Reporting.

39.Corporate social responsibifity {CSR}:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013:

2} Grass amount required to ke spent by the Company during the year was Rs, Nil {Previous vear: Rs.Nif)
b} Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars Total
Constructions { acquisition of any assets

On purpose other than (1 above

[N}
40.0ther Notes
(3} Relationship with Struck off Campanies
Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under
Relationship with Relationship vith -
Nature of transactions with struck-  Balance outstanding as on | the Struck off company, if  Bat: QL dingas | the Struck off compgny, if anfy,
Name of the struck off company off Company March 31, 2022 any, to be disclosed on March 31, 2021 to be diseloged
i Nil il Wi Nil Nil
{k) Other ratios
Particul Year Ended
articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.Total debt to Tatal assets (%) (Refer Note I} 41.41% 30.61%
2.Net profit margin (%) (Refer Nate 2} -592.48% -281.24%
Notes

1.Total debt to Total assets = {Debt securities + Borrowings other than debt securities) / Totai assels
2.Net profit margin = Net Profit for the period / Totat tncome
41 Previcus Year Comparatives

Previous year nurnber have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm current yoar's presentation and classification.
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